

# **Committee and Date**

Council

23<sup>rd</sup> September 2021

# COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting held on 15 July 2021 In The Auditorium - Theatre Severn, Frankwell Quay, Frankwell, Shrewsbury. SY3 8FT

10.00 am - 3.50 pm

**Responsible Officer**: Tim Ward

Email: tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 257713

#### **Present**

Councillors Vince Hunt (Chairman) and Lezley Picton (Leader), Brian Williams (Vice Chairman), Steve Charmley (Deputy Leader), Roy Aldcroft, Jeff Anderson, Caroline Bagnall, Nicholas Bardsley, Joyce Barrow, Bernie Bentick, Thomas Biggins, Ed Bird, Andy Boddington, Peter Broomhall, Julia Buckley, Garry Burchett, Gwilym Butler, Dean Carroll, Ted Clarke, Gerald Dakin, Rosemary Dartnall, Steve Davenport, Mary Davies, Julian Dean, Geoff Elner, David Evans, Julia Evans, Roger Evans, Paul Gill, Rob Gittins, Nat Green, Kate Halliday, Nigel Hartin, Nick Hignett, Ruth Houghton, Richard Huffer, Tracey Huffer, Kirstie Hurst-Knight, Mike Isherwood, Mark Jones, Simon Jones, Duncan Kerr, Heather Kidd, Christian Lea, Hilary Luff, Nigel Lumby, Elliott Lynch, Robert Macey, Richard Marshall, David Minnery, Pamela Moseley, Alan Mosley, Cecilia Motley, Peggy Mullock, Ian Nellins, Kevin Pardy, Vivienne Parry, Tony Parsons, Ed Potter, John Price, Chris Schofield, Robert Tindall, Edward Towers, Kevin Turley, David Vasmer, Alex Wagner, Claire Wild, Leslie Winwood and Paul Wynn

# 17 Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Simon Harris, Dan Morris, Dan Thomas, Dave Tremellen and Rob Wilson

#### 18 **Disclosable Pecuniary Interests**

Members were reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or vote on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

Councillor Cecilia Motely declared a Pecuniary Interest in Agenda Item 7, Shropshire Local Plan Review and stated that she would leave the theatre during consideration of the item, taking no part in the debate or vote.

Councillor Kevin Turley declared a Pecuniary Interest in Agenda Item 7, Shropshire Local Plan Review and stated that he would leave the theatre during consideration of the item, taking no part in the debate or vote.

#### 19 Minutes

Councillor R Evans requested that the minutes be amended to reflect that there was an election for the post of Chairman and a vote for an alternative member also took place.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 May 2021, as circulated with the agenda papers, be approved and signed as a correct record.

#### 20 Announcements

# **Chairman's Engagements**

The Chairman referred Members to the list of official engagements carried out by himself and the Vice Chairman since the last meeting of the Council on 20 May 2021, which had been circulated by email.

The Leader congratulated the England Football Team on reaching the Euro 2020 Final, however she reported that she was deeply saddened that the celebrations were overshadowed by the racial abuse that the team and, in particular, three of the players who took penalties, had received. The Leader stated that she would be writing to the Government to state that there was no place for abuse in our society and that life bans from social media and football matches should be handed out to those found guilty of these offences. The Leader urged Members to do the same.

# 21 Public Questions

The Speaker advised there were 3 public questions from Graham Betts, Anita Rose and David Cooper. Answers to the questions were provided by the respective Portfolio Holders. A copy of the questions and the responses provided are attached to the signed minutes and available from the web page for the meeting

# Council 15 July 2021

## 22 Financial Outturn 2020/21

It was proposed by the Portfolio Holder for Resources, Councillor Gwilym Butler, and seconded by Councillor Jeff Anderson that the report of the Executive Director of Resources, a copy of which is attached to the signed minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed.

In response to a question relating to recommendation K, The Portfolio Holder for Resources confirmed that he had provided a written response to this question which had previously been raised and that could be found on the Members Gateway and that it was part of the initial business plan for the purchase of the shopping centre. As the Members Gateway was not available to the public, he would take advice from

officers as to whether the information was commercially sensitive and provide a response.

**RESOLVED**: That the contents of the report and recommendations A-K be noted and approved.

# 23 Shropshire Local Plan Review - Submission for Examination

Councillor Cecilia Motley and Councillor Kevin Turley declared a pecuniary interest and left the stage during consideration of this item, taking no part in the debate or vote.

It was proposed by the Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, Regeneration & Planning, Councillor Ed Potter, and seconded by Councillor Paul Wynn that the report of the Executive Director of Place, a copy of which is attached to the signed minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed.

The Chairman reported that a number of proposed amendments had been received and that they would be considered and discussed in the order in which they were received.

# Amendment from Councillor Julia Buckley:

I would like to propose the following amendment, which is supported by Councillor Caroline Bagnall and Councillor Tony Parsons:

Recommendation B -. That authority is delegated to the Executive Director of Place in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, Regeneration and Planning to make additional minor editorial changes to the submission documents, ahead of their submission to the Secretary of State.

(minor editorial amendment proposed, included at appendix 3 or 5.35 of the report) **amendment in bold.** 

5.35 The availability of sufficient infrastructure is an important aspects of planning. At the Plan making stage there is a need to consider these issues from a strategic perspective and to draw upon available evidence to ensure that necessary infrastructure improvements are likely to be achieved in a timely manner.

Draft Policy DP25 states that new development should only take place where there is sufficient existing infrastructure capacity available, and that where there is a shortfall in provision as a result of new development, the developer contributions will be required to fund necessary improvements.

Developer contributions include the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) where the priority will be to use this to support critical or statutory infrastructure requirements from development, such as highways and education provision.

The Shropshire Place Plans and the Strategic Infrastructure and implementation Plan are key documents and will provide the ongoing evidence to support the use of CIL funds in line with the needs of new development and the aspirations of local communities.

Amendment proposed: Add "For settlements whose developments exceed 5% growth over the 5 years of the plan review period, a gateway will be introduced to pause any further development approvals until a review of the Strategic

Infrastructure and implementation Plan confirms adequate provision is in place across education, medical, public transport, active travel and highways infrastructure. At which point the gateway is unlocked to consider further development proposals, sites and applications for that settlement".

Upon being put to the vote, the proposed amendment fell.

Councillor Roger Evans and Councillor Heather Kidd requested that their vote in support of the amendment be noted.

# Amendment from Councillor Julian Dean, seconded by Councillor Julia Evans:

## Delete all and insert:

That the Council agrees to not submit the draft Local Plan to the Secretary of State for Independent Examination at this time.

That the Executive Director of Place together with the Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, Regeneration and Planning are tasked to bring forward – at the earliest opportunity - a revised draft Local Plan, together with a revised timeline for consultation and council agreement, in order to produce a plan that has more ambitious development policies with regard to climate change mitigation and adaptation, and that sets levels of growth in line with, rather than substantially in excess of, the baseline defined needs.

Upon being put to the vote, the proposed amendment fell.

Amendment from Cllr Andy Boddington and seconded by the Liberal Democrat Group.

Replace paragraph 2 with:

This council recognises the contributions that officers, councillors and communities have made to the current draft of the new local plan. It believes that further scrutiny of the plan is needed to ensure that it is aligned with community needs and priorities, and to ensure that it provides the most robust blueprint for the county through to 2038.

This council proposes that the council's overview and scrutiny committees review those areas of the plan within their remits, producing a report to go to a special meeting of this council in October or November 2021.

On being put to a recorded vote the proposed amendment fell by 29 Members voting in favor, 39 against and no abstentions, as follows:

#### FOR (29)

Bagnall, Bentick, Boddington, Buckley, Clarke, Dartnall, M. Davies, Dean, J. Evans, R. Evans, Green, Halliday, Hartin, Houghton, R. Huffer, T. Huffer, Isherwood, Kerr, Kidd, Moseley, Mosley, Mullock, Pardy, Parry, Parsons, Tindall, Towers, Vasmer, Wagner.

#### AGAINST (39)

Aldcroft, Anderson, Bardsley, Barrow, Biggins, Bird, Broomhall, Burchett, Butler, Carroll, Charmley, Dakin, Davenport, Elner, D. Evans, Gill, Gittins, Hignett, Hunt,

Hurst-Knight, M. Jones, S. Jones, Lea, Luff, Lumby, Lynch, Macey, Marshall, Minnery, Nellins, Picton, Potter, Price, Schofield, Turley, Wild, Williams, Winwood, Wynn.

# ABSTENTION (0)

Debate then turned to the substantive motion, which had been moved and seconded, to approve the recommendation contained within the report of the Executive Director of Place.

On being put to a recorded vote the proposition was carried by 34 Members voting in favor, 28 against and 5 abstentions, as follows:

# FOR (34)

Aldcroft, Anderson, Bardsley, Barrow, Broomhall, Burchett, Butler, Carroll, Charmley, Dakin, Davenport, Elner, D. Evans, Gill, Gittins, Hignett, Hunt, Hurst-Knight, M. Jones, S. Jones, Luff, Lumby, Macey, Marshall, Minnery, Mullock, Nellins, Picton, Potter, Price, Schofield, Wild, Williams, Wynn.

# AGAINST (28)

Bagnall, Bentick, Bird, Boddington, Buckley, Dartnall, M. Davies, Dean, J. Evans, R. Evans, Green, Halliday, Hartin, Houghton, R. Huffer, T. Huffer, Isherwood, Kerr, Kidd, Lea, Moseley, Pardy, Parry, Parsons, Tindall, Vasmer, Wagner, Winwood.

## **ABSTENTION (5)**

Biggins, Clarke, Lynch, Mosley, Towers

# **RESOLVED:**

- A. That the Council agrees to submit the draft Local Plan (Appendix 1) to the Secretary of State for Independent Examination, along with the Schedule of Proposed Minor Modifications (Appendix 3) and the other prescribed documents and evidence base in line with Regulation 22 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, (as amended).
- B That authority is delegated to the Executive Director of Place in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, Regeneration and Planning to make additional minor editorial changes to the submission documents, ahead of their submission to the Secretary of State

# 24 Adoption of Stoke Upon Tern Neighborhood Development Plan

It was proposed by the Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, Regeneration & Planning, Councillor Ed Potter, and seconded by Councillor Paul Gill that the report of the Executive Director of Resources, a copy of which is attached to the signed minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That Shropshire Council as the Local Planning Authority 'makes' i.e. adopts the Stoke upon Tern Neighbourhood Plan and brings it into force as part of the Development Plan for Shropshire.

# 25 **Investment in Highways**

It was proposed by the Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Physical Infrastructure, Highways and Built Housing Councillor Steve Charmley and seconded by Councillor Richard Marshall that the report of the Executive Director of Resources, a copy of which is attached to the signed minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed.

Councillor Andy Boddington proposed that recommendation 2.3 be amended to read:

Approve some of variations to the current capital programme proposed in Appendix A to release additional capital investment of £7m into highway maintenance for the current financial year, while setting the Highways Maintenance Challenge budget at £1.643m for the current year.

The amendment was seconded by Councillor Bernie Bentick.

Members expressed concern that money was being removed from the drainage budget as this would have a knock-on effect on highways. The Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Physical Infrastructure, Highways and Built Housing explained that this referred to 3 specific projects funded by the DFT which could not be delivered in the current financial year and that the normal drainage budget would not be affected.

Following a vote, the amendment was defeated.

Members welcomed the additional funding for highways. Among concerns expressed were: -

- The need for adequate monitoring of Keir and other contractors
- Reduction in the broadband budget
- Need for engagement with Town and Parish Councils and local Members

Councillor Julia Buckley made reference to the proposed closures of the highways depots at Hodnet and Bridgnorth and proposed that the following recommendation be added: -

That no highways depots be closed until Council receives a report for members to discuss and approve.

Councillor Les Winwood seconded the amendment

Following a vote, the amendment was defeated.

Following a vote, it was **RESOLVED**:

That Council

- 2.1 Note the contents of this report.
- 2.2 Provide a mandate for officers to investigate a highway investment strategy of between £60m and £120m as part of a broader medium-term financial strategy
- 2.3 Approve the variations to the current capital programme proposed in Appendix A to release additional capital investment of £8m into highway maintenance for the current financial year.

# 26 Appointment of Officers to statutory roles - Returning Officer, Statutory Scrutiny Officer

It was proposed by the Chairman Councillor Vince Hunt, and seconded by the Vice Chairman Councillor Brian Williams that the report of the Interim Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic Services, a copy of which is attached to the signed minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That Andy Begley (Chief Executive) be appointed as Returning Officer in accordance with section 35(1) of the of the Representation of the People Act 1983 with immediate effect.

That Tim Collard (Interim Assistant Director Legal and Democratic Services) be appointed as the Deputy Returning Officer in accordance with section 35(1) of the Representation of the People Act 1983 with immediate effect.

That Andy Begley (Chief Executive) be appointed as the Electoral Registration Officer in accordance with section 8(2)(a) of the Representation of the People Act 1983 with immediate effect

That Tim Collard (Interim Assistant Director Legal and Democratic Services) be appointed as the Deputy Electoral Registration Officer in accordance with section 8(2)(a) of the Representation of the People Act 1983 with immediate effect

That Alden Whitaker-Brown (Interim Assistant Director– Business Intelligence) be appointed as the Statutory Scrutiny Officer in accordance with section 9FB of the Local Government Act 2000

# 27 Changes to the Constitution

It was proposed by the Chairman Councillor Vince Hunt, and seconded by the Vice Chairman Councillor Brian Williams that the report of the Interim Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic Services, a copy of which is attached to the signed minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed.

Councillor Roger Evans expressed concern that the proposals had not been brought to the Constitution Working Group and expressed concern regarding the removal of Local Joint Committees as they provided a valuable source of local consultation. He proposed the following amendment: -

That recommendation A be removed from the recommendations.

The amendment was seconded by Councillor Heather Kidd.

Following a vote, the amendment was defeated.

Councillor Kidd asked for assurances that alternative provision to the LJCs be brought forward as soon as possible. The Leader of the Council assured members that this would be done.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- A.That authority be delegated to the Interim Assistant Director (Legal and Democratic Services) to remove all references to Local Joint Committees from the Council's Constitution.
- B.That the Scheme of Delegation set out in Appendix 1 to this report is adopted and published, replacing the current Scheme of Delegation set out in Part 8 of the Constitution
- C. That the "Channel Panel" be included in part 3 of the constitution (responsibility for functions) as a statutory panel made up of representatives of Shropshire Council and the chief officer of police plus others as specified by the Counter-terrorism and Security Act 2015 with the function of
  - assessing the extent to which individuals (as identified on reasonable grounds by the chief constable or the local authority) are vulnerable to being drawn into terrorism; and
  - ii. amongst other things, preparing a plan in respect of identified individuals who the panel considers should be offered support for the purpose of reducing their vulnerability to being drawn into terrorism.
  - D. That paragraph 11.4(c) of Article 11 of the Constitution be amended, and an additional paragraph (d) be inserted to read as follows:

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 8

- "(c) Subject to (d) below, the decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from another local authority shall be reserved to the Council meeting.
- (d) the decision whether or not to accept a delegation from another local authority in respect of cross border planning applications shall be made by the relevant Planning Committee."
- E. That the "Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee" be included in Part 3 of the Constitution (Responsibility for Functions) as a Statutory Body. It is recommended that the six Shropshire Council representatives (three Councillors (politically balanced) and three co-opted members who are independent of the council) are appointed by the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Councillors being selected from the membership of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee) in order to scrutinise health issues that impact on the wider health economy in Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin.

#### 28 Motions

The following motions were received in accordance with Procedure Rule 16:

1. The following motion has been received from Councillor Julian Dean and is supported by the Green Group:

# **Decarbonising our homes**

Council recognises the urgent need to decarbonise heating and power in homes. Shropshire Climate Action Partnership estimates 20,000 homes per year need to be made zero carbon ready, whilst Friends of the Earth suggest 9,000 homes need insulation upgrades and 5,500 need fossil-fuel free heating systems annually. The collapse of the Green Homes Grant and the failure of the government so far to provide long term dependable finance & market shaping for this purpose make this task more challenging & more urgent.

Council further recognises the 'green recovery' opportunity presented by the need to decarbonise our homes. LGA Inform estimates there could be 1700 jobs in Shropshire by 2030 in low carbon heating and energy efficiency work.

We note that Shropshire Council has improved the SAP rating for its own on-grid stock to above that for the country as a whole, which given the age of the stock is a credible achievement, but much more remains to be done.

We welcome the council's initiatives to bring together partners to develop countywide retrofit work and call on Cabinet to publish a retrofit strategy for the county in early 2022.

We recognise that, to begin with, establishing the skills and firms to retrofit our homes will rely on developments in the social housing sector. We therefore call on the portfolio holder, Asset Assurance Board and Star Housing Board to consult tenants and seek their approval to design and cost a programme of work that would

decarbonise the council's housing stock by 2030. We recommend that all options be considered in the implementation of this programme including partnerships with neighbouring authorities, social housing providers & innovative social & private sector enterprises.

We recognise that the cost of this investment in our future may exceed the resources of the HRA so we also call on the DCLG to provide the funding necessary to implement this scheme as recommended by the recent Environmental Audit Committee report and we ask the County's MP to support this request.

Councillor Duncan Kerr seconded the Motion

Cllr David Vasmer proposed the following amendment

That the following be added at the end of the resolution:

Recognising the need to make heating and power in all our homes cheaper to run and release less carbon, the Council calls on Cornovii and the Star Housing Board to provide decarbonised affordable housing to the highest standards currently available and to set up and publicise an informed campaign to advice householders and landlords how they can decarbonise homes throughout Shropshire.

The amendment was seconded by Councillor Andy Boddington. The amendment was accepted by Councillor Dean and became part of the substantive motion

# **Amendment 2 from Cllr Steve Charmley**

Council recognises the urgent need to decarbonise heating and power in homes. Shropshire Climate Action Partnership estimates 20,000 homes per year need to be made zero carbon ready, whilst Friends of the Earth suggest 9,000 homes need insulation upgrades and 5,500 need fossil-fuel free heating systems annually. The collapse of the Green Homes Grant and the failure of the government so far to provide long term dependable finance & market shaping for this purpose make this task more challenging & more urgent.

Council further recognises the 'green recovery' opportunity presented by the need to decarbonise our homes. LGA Inform estimates there could be 1700 jobs in Shropshire by 2030 in low carbon heating and energy efficiency work.

We note that Shropshire Council has improved the SAP rating for its own on-grid stock to above that for the country as a whole, which given the age of the stock is a credible achievement, but much more remains to be done.

We welcome the council's initiatives to bring together partners to develop countywide retrofit work, and call on Cabinet to publish a retrofit strategy for the county in early 2022.

We recognise that, to begin with, establishing the skills and firms to retrofit our homes will rely on developments in the social housing sector. We therefore call on the portfolio holder, Asset Assurance Board and Star Housing Board to consult tenants and seek their approval to design and cost a programme of work that

would decarbonise the council's housing stock by 2030. We recommend that all options be considered in the implementation of this programme including partnerships with neighbouring authorities, social housing providers & innovative social & private sector enterprises.

We recognise that the cost of this investment in our future may exceed the resources of the HRA. Full Council resolves to continue to lobby MHCLG to ask for the funding necessary to implement this scheme as recommended by the recent Environmental Audit Committee report and thank Shropshire's MPs for supporting our efforts to secure the funding needed for this scheme.

The amendment was accepted by Councillor Dean and became part of the substantive motion

#### **RESOLVED:**

Council recognises the urgent need to decarbonise heating and power in homes. Shropshire Climate Action Partnership estimates 20,000 homes per year need to be made zero carbon ready, whilst Friends of the Earth suggest 9,000 homes need insulation upgrades and 5,500 need fossil-fuel free heating systems annually. The collapse of the Green Homes Grant and the failure of the government so far to provide long term dependable finance & market shaping for this purpose make this task more challenging & more urgent.

Council further recognises the 'green recovery' opportunity presented by the need to decarbonise our homes. LGA Inform estimates there could be 1700 jobs in Shropshire by 2030 in low carbon heating and energy efficiency work.

We note that Shropshire Council has improved the SAP rating for its own on-grid stock to above that for the country as a whole, which given the age of the stock is a credible achievement, but much more remains to be done.

We welcome the council's initiatives to bring together partners to develop countywide retrofit work, and call on Cabinet to publish a retrofit strategy for the county in early 2022.

We recognise that, to begin with, establishing the skills and firms to retrofit our homes will rely on developments in the social housing sector. We therefore call on the portfolio holder, Asset Assurance Board and Star Housing Board to consult tenants and seek their approval to design and cost a programme of work that would decarbonise the council's housing stock by 2030. We recommend that all options be considered in the implementation of this programme including partnerships with neighbouring authorities, social housing providers & innovative social & private sector enterprises.

We recognise that the cost of this investment in our future may exceed the resources of the HRA. Full Council resolves to continue to lobby MHCLG to ask for the funding necessary to implement this scheme as recommended by the recent Environmental Audit Committee report and thank Shropshire's MPs for supporting our efforts to secure the funding needed for this scheme.

Recognising the need to make heating and power in all our homes cheaper to run and release less carbon, the Council calls on Cornovii and the Star Housing Board to provide decarbonised affordable housing to the highest standards currently available and to set up and publicise an informed campaign to advice householders and landlords how they can decarbonise homes throughout Shropshire.

# 2 The following motion has been received from Councillor Julian Dean and is supported by the Green Group:

# A Partnership between Local Government and National Government to tackle Climate Change

# **Background**

In 2018, at COP24, the UK Government signed up to having 'domestic institutional arrangements, public participation and engagement with local communities' so localities can play their part in delivering the UKs 'Nationally Determined Contributions' in the Paris Climate Agreement.

In May 2021 Alok Sharma MP, President of COP26 said Collaboration would be a key objective of the climate summit

"Governments, business and civil society (sometimes called 'non-state actors' and including local government) need to work together to transform the ways we power our homes and businesses, grow our food, develop infrastructure and move ourselves and goods around"

Despite these agreements and statements there is still no formal relationship allowing a joint partnership working between Local and National Government on climate action.

# This Council resolves to

- In this year of COP26 add our voice to calls by the Local Government
  Association and the Association of Directors of Environment, Economy,
  Planning and Transport & others for a joint local & national government Task
  Force to plan action to reach 'net zero' emissions. Such a partnership can set
  appropriate regulations, benchmarks and targets and create the much-needed
  long-term funding mechanisms to enable local communities and economies to
  decarbonise whilst remaining resilient and sustainable
- Write to Alok Sharma MP, President for COP26, the Prime Minister and the Leadership Board of the LGA informing them of our support for a joint Local/National Government Climate Change Partnership Taskforce and asking for one to be established as soon as possible.

The motion was seconded by Councillor Julia Evans

Councillor David Vasmer proposed the following amendment

Under This Council Resolves add an additional section as follows:

respond to the Government's call for local government to transform the way we develop infrastructure by reviewing the Council's capital programme. This review should examine ways in which objectives might be achieved by developing alternative capital projects which will reduce the council's contribution to carbon emissions such as replacing the North West Relief Road with improvements to existing roads, park and ride and public transport along with the adoption of active travel measures.

Councillor Alex Wagner seconded the amendment.

On taking a vote the amendment was defeated.

#### RESOLVED:

This Council resolves to

- In this year of COP26 add our voice to calls by the Local Government Association and the Association of Directors of Environment, Economy, Planning and Transport & others for a joint local & national government Task Force to plan action to reach 'net zero' emissions. Such a partnership can set appropriate regulations, benchmarks and targets and create the much-needed long-term funding mechanisms to enable local communities and economies to decarbonise whilst remaining resilient and sustainable
- Write to Alok Sharma MP, President for COP26, the Prime Minister and the Leadership Board of the LGA informing them of our support for a joint Local/National Government Climate Change Partnership Taskforce and asking for one to be established as soon as possible.
- 3. The following motion has been received from Councillor Duncan Kerr and is supported by the Councillors Julian Dean, Julia Evans and Mike Isherwood:

## **Waste Minimisation**

"Shropshire Council has a recycling rate inside the top 50 in England (source: <a href="https://www.letsrecycle.com/councils/league-tables/2019-20-overall-performance">https://www.letsrecycle.com/councils/league-tables/2019-20-overall-performance</a>).

Unfortunately the same data puts us in the top 5 authorities in the country when it comes to total household waste arisings per household. The consequence of this is that we are at the top of our family group for the costs of waste collection and disposal. There may be all sorts of nuances and caveats to these figures, but the result is that we are producing a lot of household waste and it is costing a lot to process and that has environmental and economic impact. Indeed Shropshire with a recycling rate of some 55% sends almost as much waste to landfill (222kgs) as neighbouring Herefordshire with a recycling rate of just 41% (228kgs) (source lets recycle data for 2019.20). That's why the waste hierarchy places waste minimisation at the top and why is a key part of the fifth Carbon budget from the Committee for Climate Change (<a href="https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/5CB-Infographic-FINAL-.pdf">https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/5CB-Infographic-FINAL-.pdf</a>).

Back in 2010 Shropshire Council approved a waste minimisation plan which aimed to reduce total waste arisings per person by 10% by 2015. The target was not reached then and has still not been reached some eleven years later. Currently we are still producing some 490kgs of waste per person.

It is therefore proposed that as a matter of urgency the portfolio-holder revisits the waste hierarchy and produces a waste minimisation for the County by December 2021. Given the scale of the climate emergency we now face, and the need to catch-up on previous failed initiatives, it is proposed that the new target should be a 25% reduction in waste arisings per person by 2025. This would take our waste arisings down to 367kgs per person just below the current England average of 373 kgs and assumes no improvement by any other authority. Such a policy would also complement any initiative by the Council to improve recycling by replacing crates with wheeled bins. It is, we suggest, the bare minimum step we should be doing. We are sure that many members of the local community with expertise in this area would assist the Council in developing such an approach and there is much good practice available on-line.

Some measures that may be considered if preparing this strategy may have resource implications. The comparative data from CIPFA shows that authorities who produce less waste spend less in processing and disposing of it which is why our comparative costs are so high. Although a very small part of the waste stream is land-filled with a land-fill tax on active waste now £96 per tonne savings from reducing waste can be significant and will more than off-set any upfront costs so it would be a prudent use of the Council invest to save resources".

The motion was seconded by Councillor Mike Isherwood

## **RESOLVED:**

That the motion not be supported

# 4. The following motion has been received from Councillor Rosemary Dartnall and is supported by the Labour Group:

Based on data published on Shropshire Council's website, in late 2020 the average Shropshire house price equates to 6.7 times the annual average income, meaning that our essential and key workers are often unable to live local to their workplace. In recent years both homelessness and the use of temporary accommodation have risen in Shropshire. There is a need for 5,000 genuinely affordable homes not adequately met despite widescale development across the county. Some housing developers seek to undermine the minimum percentage requirements for building affordable homes which is set at either 10, 15 or 20% of the number of homes built. At the recent South Planning Committee meeting, it was revealed that the developer seeking to build 1,000 homes on the Ironbridge power station site has applied to reduce the 20% minimum of affordable homes stipulated in that area to a mere 5%, claiming that this is needed on fiscal grounds despite Shropshire Council's own value judgment that this particular site could viably support 30% affordable homes. Shropshire Council is hereby asked to investigate making an

increase in the requirement for affordable homes in all developments in order to address better the housing need of local people and signal clearly to interested parties that housing built must equate to local need and fulfil the council's minimum requirements.

The amendment was seconded by Councillor Tony Parsons

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the motion not be supported

# 5 The following motion has been received from Councillor Kate Halliday and is supported by Councillors Rosemary Dartnall, Julia Buckley and Alan Mosley:

This council is committed to support an initiative to make Shropshire into a recognised 'Council of Sanctuary' welcoming those fleeing violence and persecution in their own countries. We recognise their potential contribution to our county, and also recognise that a comprehensive, co-ordinated and forward-looking approach is needed if the welfare of people moving into the county, and community cohesion between new and existing communities, are to be supported effectively.

Local authorities across the political spectrum have been awarded 'Council of Sanctuary' status. Shropshire Council is already taking many of the actions required to achieve 'Sanctuary Status' through its existing programmes. To become a Council of Sanctuary there are some straightforward steps

- 1 Contact 'City of Sanctuary' to pledge support and connect with them
- 2 Join the local authority network. In joining the network we are committing to work towards the Council of Sanctuary Award and are agreeing to sign up as a Supporting Organisation
- 3 Produce an Action Plan which focuses on learning, embedding the principles of City of Sanctuary, and sharing good news stories.
- 4 Then when ready apply for recognition.

More information can be found on the City of Sanctuary website https://cityofsanctuary.org/

#### This council:

- Acknowledges the contribution of refugees and people seeking sanctuary to Shropshire
- Are willing to add our organisation's name to the list of supporters of City of Sanctuary
- This council will work to implement the City of Sanctuary pledges through its actions and policies, and with its partners in the statutory and voluntary sectors.
- This council is committed to support an initiative to make Shropshire a 'Council of Sanctuary'

The motion was seconded by Councillor Rosemary Dartnall

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the motion be supported

#### 29 Questions from Members

The Speaker advised that the following questions had been received in accordance with Procedure Rule 15. A copy of the report containing the detailed questions and their formal response is attached to the signed minutes.

Received from Councillor Kevin Pardy and answered by Councillor Steve Charmley, Portfolio Holder for Physical Infrastructure, Highways and Built Housing, in relation to remedial work to the Heathgate Roundabout. By way of supplementary question, Councillor Pardy asked for temporary lines to be installed as a safety measure ahead of works being carried out. The Portfolio Holder agreed to investigate this and provide an answer by email.

Received from Councillor Duncan Kerr and answered by Councillor Kirstie Hurst-Knight, Portfolio Holder for Children and Education, in relation to the increase in the number of "looked after" children. By way of supplementary question Councillor Kerr asked for the estimated cost to Shropshire Council of a 30% rise in Children taken into care and the costs of the review carried out in 2019 and mentioned in the reply from the portfolio-holder. The Portfolio Holder agreed to investigate this and provide an answer by email.

Received from Councillor Ruth Houghton and answered by Councillor Steve Charmley, Portfolio Holder for Physical Infrastructure, Highways and Built Housing, in relation to the long term use of temporary traffic lights. By way of supplementary question Councillor Houghton asked for confirmation as to how many lights and the costs. The Portfolio Holder agreed to investigate this further and provide an answer by email.

Received from Councillor Roger Evans and answered by Councillor Ed Potter – Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, Regeneration & Planning in relation to reforms to the planning system. By way of supplementary question Councillor Evans asked does the current portfolio holder support what was stated by previous portfolio holder. The Portfolio Holder agreed to provide an answer by email.

# 30 Appointments to Committees

It was proposed by the Chairman Councillor Vince Hunt, and seconded by the Vice Chairman Councillor Brian Williams that the following amendments to committee membership be agreed

Councillor David Vasmer to replace Councillor Heather Kidd as a member of Performance Management Scrutiny Committee.

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 16

Councillor Roy Aldcroft to be appointed as a substitute member of the Performance Management Scrutiny Committee.

Councillor Julian Dean to be appointed as a substitute member for the Independent Group on the Northern Planning Committee.

#### **RESOLVED**

That Councillor David Vasmer replace Councillor Heather Kidd as a member of Performance Management Scrutiny Committee.

That Councillor Roy Aldcroft to be appointed as a substitute member of the Performance Management Scrutiny Committee.

That Councillor Julian Dean to be appointed as a substitute member for the Independent Group on the Northern Planning Committee.

# 31 Report of the Shropshire and Wrekin Fire and Rescue Authority

It was proposed by the Chairman, Councillor Vince Hunt and seconded by Councillor Paul Wynn that the report of the Shropshire and Wrekin Fire and Rescue Authority, a copy of which is attached to the signed minutes, be received and noted.

## **RESOLVED:**

That the report of the Shropshire and Wrekin Fire and Rescue Authority be noted.

# 32 Exclusion of Press and Public

# **RESOLVED**

That in accordance with the provisions of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and Paragraph 10.4[3] of the Council's Access to Information Rules, the public and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items

#### 33 London Road Shrewsbury Development Scheme Report

It was proposed by Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, Regeneration & Planning Councillor Ed Potter, and seconded by the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health and Assets Councillor Dean Carroll that the exempt report of the Executive Director of Place, a copy of which is attached to the signed minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed.

## **RESOLVED:**

That the recommendations in the exempt report be agreed.

# 34 Maesbury Solar PV

It was proposed by the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Natural Assets & the Green Economy Councillor Ian Nellins, and seconded by the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health and Assets Councillor Dean Carroll that the exempt report of the Executive Director of Place, a copy of which is attached to the signed minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the recommendations in the exempt report be agreed.

# 35 Shropshire Community Leisure Trust - Proposed Leisure Management Contract Extension

It was proposed by the Portfolio Holder for Communities, Place, Tourism & Transport Councillor Cecilia Motley, and seconded by the Leader, Councillor Lezley Picton that the exempt report of the Executive Director of Place, a copy of which is attached to the signed minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the recommendations in the exempt report be agreed.

Signed	 (Chairman)
<b>5</b> .	
Date:	

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 18